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APPROVED: 8/16/10
MINUTES OF THE
CONSOLIDATED ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS
OF THE
TOWN OF HIGHLANDS AND VILLAGE OF HIGHLAND FALLS
JULY 19, 2010

A regular meeting of the Zoning Board of Appeals was held in the Court Room, Town Hall,
Highland Falls, New York, on Monday, July 19, 2010, at 7:00 P. M.

THERE WERE PRESENT:
Board Members:

David Weyant, Chairman
Jack Jannarone

Tim Donnery

Tony Galu

Ralph Montellese

Absent
Ray Devereaux

Alyse Terhune, Attorney, (Jacobowitz & Gubits, LLP)
ALSO PRESENT:

John Hager, Building Inspector, Troy A. Wojciekofsky, P.E., Stantec, Matthew
Johnson, AIA, Gensler, Steve Snavely, Jim Titolo, Michael Bosch, James McDonald,
Ann and Alicia Ignacio, Karen Pelella, John Rizzo, Jennifer Steinmetz Hurst, and
Maureen Rizzo.

The meeting was called to order by the Chairman, at 7:00 P. M., with the
Pledge to the Flag. It was noted that a quorum was present.

MR. WEYANT: I will open the Consolidated Zoning Board of Appeals meeting of
July 19, 2010, and note that all members are present with the exception of Mr.
Devereaux, who is away.

We have the Minutes of June 21, 2010 that were sent to you prior to tonight’s
meeting. I am going to make a couple of changes in those minutes.

Page 29: No. 20: The sentence should read: “That is in reference to a non-
conforming building not a non-conforming use.”

Page 43: USAA Building Property is 529 Main Street, Highland Falls.

Page 44: No.7: The Address should read 529 Main Street, Highland Falls.
Page 54: Mr. Devereaux is speaking about “Julia Hood.”

Page 58: In the middle of the page, the blank should read motor pool.

A motion was made to approve the June 21, 2010 Minutes, as amended.

Motion: Mr. Donnery Seconded: Mr. Jannarone Approved
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MR. WEYANT: First item on the agenda tonight is the Public Hearing for John
Rizzo and Maureen Rizzo. Please come forward. Gentlemen, this Public
Hearing we started at our last meeting in May. I will apologize to Mr. and Mrs. Rizzo
if there was some lack of communication between you and I back in May when you
were here. When we first presented your project, I said that you did not have to be
here for that initial presentation but we wanted you to be here for the Public Hearing
obviously so we could review it with you. We opened the Public Hearing at our last
meeting.

At 7:04 P. M., the Public Hearing was opened.

MR. WEYANT: Mrs. Rizzo, I will ask you to hold up your right hand. Do you
solemnly swear that the information provided herein to be accurate and true to the
best of your ability?

MRS. RIZZO: Yes.

MR. WEYANT: Please review with the Board again what you would like to do with
your property and why you need the variance.

MRS. RIZZO: We were extending the porch to go across the whole front of the
house. When they were re-doing it, they found that most of it was rotted, so we
started to replace it. I said why don’t you do it all the way across?

MR. WEYANT: We are looking here to give you some setback variances. Am I right?
MRS. RIZZO: Right.

MR. WEYANT: You need a front yard setback variance of 16 feet, a side yard setback
variance of 4 feet, and a combined side yard setback variance of 7.1 feet.

MRS. RIZZO: Right.

MR. WEYANT: Is there anyone in the audience that would like to speak either for or
against Mr. and Mrs. Rizzo’s application for a variance. I am seeing none. I will
entertain a motion that the public hearing be closed.

At 7:07 P. M., a motion was made to close the Public Hearing.

Motion: Mr. Donnery Seconded: Mr. Doherty Approved

MR. WEYANT: Further discussion, Gentlemen, any questions for Mrs. Rizzo, any
problems that you see?

MR. DOHERTY: I see it as an improvement to the property.

MR. WEYANT: Idon’t see a particular problem here. Does the Building Inspector
have anything to add?

MR. HAGER: I don’t have anything to add.
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MR. WEYANT: I think it meets all the balance standards that we require. I will
entertain a motion.

A motion was made to approve the three variances which consist of a
front yard setback variance of 16 feet, side yard setback variance of 4
feet, and a combined side yard setback variance of 7.1 feet.

Motion: Mr. Donnery Seconded: Mr. Jannarone Approved
With a Roll Call Vote

Mr. Montellese Aye
Mr. Galu Aye
Mr. Doherty Aye
Mr. Donnery Aye
Mr. Jannarone Aye
Mr. Weyant Aye

MR. WEYANT: Your variances have been approved. You need to be in touch with
Mr. Hager who will help you with the next step, including the building permit.

MRS. RIZZO: Thank you very much.

MR. WEYANT: Julia Hood and Joel Baldomir, 11 Evergreen Lane,
Highland Falls, NY. We had a Public Hearing at our previous meeting and we
asked for further information in the form of a survey of the property because we have
a situation where the property line is abutting right up to the neighbor’s property
and the deck is right there.

I have received from the Building Inspector a letter that was faxed to the Board from
Mr. Ralph Heavner, who is Counsel for Ms. Hood and Mr. Baldomir requesting that
the referenced matter before the Board be adjourned to our September meeting. A
question to Counsel: Because we held the meeting on June 21, 2010, do we have a
60 day period from that point?

MS. TERHUNE: Did you close the Public Hearing?
MR. DONNERY: I thought we just adjourned it.

MS. TERHUNE: If the Applicant is requesting an adjournment, then you can grant
that request.

MR. WEYANT: And we will be within the law?

MS. TERHUNE: Yes, as long as it is mutually agreed between the Board and the
Applicant.

MR. WEYANT: I don’t have a problem with adjourning it to September if it is all
right with the Board.

A motion was made to adjourn this matter to the September meeting.
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Motion: Mr. Doherty Seconded: Mr. Jannarone Approved

MR. WEYANT: Next we have a Public Hearing for Al Sapienza, 66 Ondaora
Parkway, Highland Falls, NY. Mr. Titolo is here representing Mr. Sapienza. You will
recall at our last meeting we reviewed the situation at 66 Ondaora Parkway, and that
the Applicant is requesting variances for an apartment above an existing garage. I
need from you Mr. Titolo your Affidavit of Mailing and Signage. I note for the record
that I have an Affidavit of Mailing and an Affidavit of Posting of Signage. I also have
an Affidavit of Publication in the News of the Highlands.

At 7:13 P. M., the Public Hearing was opened.

MR. WEYANT: Mr. Titolo, please hold up your right hand. Do you solemnly swear
that the information provided herein to be accurate and true to the best of your
ability?

MR. TITOLO: I do.
MR. WEYANT: Please review for the Board and the audience what you want to do.

MR. TITOLO: There is a side yard which is the adjoining property which the existing
garage is built on basically a zero lot line. There is no side yard. The other is a use
variance for an apartment above the garage.

MR. WEYANT: We had quite a discussion at our last meeting about this use
variance.

MS. TERHUNE: Yes, we did.

MR. WEYANT: Could you review for the Board the use variance and what that
entails.

MS. TERHUNE: We have done further research on the question of what type of
variance is required here. After reviewing numerous case citations and reviewing
your Code, it is our opinion that this Board has the discretion to either grant a use
variance or an area variance or vary the application of the Code. I will say that a use
variance, if this Board decides that, in fact, it is a use variance that is required, and I
am not saying that it is, it would be essentially an almost impossible variance to
grant based on the standards. With an area variance you would have the option to
grant that or not grant that. That would be within your discretion. In looking at the
case law and looking at your Code, this Board is actually granted a good deal of
discretion by the Town and the Village to apply the Code in a way that reflects a
balancing of the need of the Applicant versus the need of the neighborhood.

The way we came to that conclusion is that if you look at your Code on page 240.77
in Article 11, Section 240.61. This whole article sets forth the grant of power to the
Zoning Board of Appeals. I am looking at the Village Code. It is essentially the same
in both the Village Code and the Town Code. It essentially gives you jurisdiction not
only to grant very specific variances that are defined under the State Law of New
York, which is the area variance. For the use variance with applicable standards
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thereto you are also granted the authority to interpret the Code and you are also
granted the authority to determine any matter that is justly brought before you. So
you are not specifically constrained in terms of how you interpret the Code and then
apply it under the circumstances. In this particular case, it is our opinion that this is
an unusual situation where it really doesn'’t fit easily into either a use variance or an
area variance and, in fact, may be a bit of a combination of both. Having said that,
this Board, in our opinion, is free to look at the application, consider the effect on the
neighborhood and any of the balancing determinations that you want to think or ask
about, consider the impact to the neighborhood, etc., and then make your decision,
and either grant the necessary variances or not grant the necessary variances. Again,
you can open the Public Hearing, hear the public comments, close the Public
Hearing, or adjourn it if you feel that more time is needed. At that point you would
have 62 days to make your decision. It is not necessary to figure this all out tonight
and make that decision tonight. You can hear the public and think about it some
more. Perhaps you want some clarification from your attorneys if you have any
questions. Certainly, I would not mind a little more time to review a little bit more of
the case law.

MR. WEYANT: Thank you, Alyse.
MS. TERHUNE: You are welcome.

MR. WEYANT: I have opened the Public Hearing and I believe what Alyse is saying
is true. I think the use variance for this Board to act on would be difficult. I think
the area variances are something that we should consider. I want to note for the
record that I have a copy of a letter from Mr. Hager which I gave to all of you giving
us a history of the property and what the Building Inspector’s Office has had to do
with it since 2003 forward. I want you all to have time to read that but not tonight.
What I would like to do tonight is listen to the public. I understand there are people
here that want to speak. Name and where you live.

MRS. JENNIFER HURST FOR ANN MARIE IGNACIO, 22 Regina Road, Highland
Falls.

MR. WEYANT: You are allowing Mrs. Hurst to speak on your behalf?
MRS. IGNACIO: Yes. I have a broken tooth.

MRS. HURST: My name is Jennifer Steinmetz Hurst and as I said she has requested
that I speak on her behalf. First off, we would like to say that we did not receive this

letter until Saturday. I don’t know if it was our Post Office or what have you, but she
did not get the letter until Saturday. So just an F.Y.I. to that as to the timing.

MR. WEYANT: That will not have a bearing as long as you received it.

MRS. HURST: I did not know if there was a timing issue. Secondly, Mrs. Ignacio
says that she is obviously against a zero variance because it gives her absolutely no
privacy. It will move straight up to her back yard which I believe is against a rock
wall. There is already an office there that Mr. Sapienza has gone over and spoken to
Mrs. Ignacio in regards to. He said that he would never make it into an apartment
and now that is taking place.
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MR. WEYANT: He told that to Mrs. Ignacio?
MRS. HURST: Is that correct?

MRS. IGNACIO: It is an office. Several years back, he told us it was an office, but it
isn’t and has not been. Through the years I have watched people go in and out and
haven’t been bright enough perhaps to come down and complain. I did not know
that he got a different rate of taxes because he has an office than I do.

MRS. HURST: She also feels that her property value will go down and she will have
absolutely no privacy. She is obviously requesting that you do not grant the variance.

MRS. IGNACIO: Is it so that the property is supposed to be 10 feet off of the wall?

MR. TITOLO: Iwould like the Board to explain. I know Mrs. Ignacio very well and
think that she and her family have a misunderstanding of the idea that the garage is
somehow is going to be extended up to her back wall. It is not going to.

MR. WEYANT: It is my understanding that the garage remains the same, Mrs.
Ignacio.

MR. TITOLO: Exactly.
MRS. IGNACIO: It does not say that in the letter I received.

MR. WEYANT: I don’t know what you received in your letter, but the application
before this Board is not showing an extension or addition to this existing garage. It
is converting this garage to an apartment but not making it bigger.

MR. TITOLO: Iwould also like to address some of the concerns. Mr. Sapienza
wanted to be here tonight, Mrs. Ignacio, but he couldn’t be, he had to go to L.A. 1
have something that he wants me to read. He had planned on enclosing those set of
stairs because he knows that it indirectly affects your privacy back there. If I am
awarded the project, we cannot enclose those stairs until we get this approval and
then Mr. Hager has to issue a building permit. He also has intention, and this can be
written for the record, to put evergreens all the way across your back wall. He
already tried that and six died last year or the year before.

MRS. IGNACIO: I don’t want my back wall all covered up with fences or trees.
MR. TITOLO: No, it is going to be on his side.

MRS. IGNACIO: I know it is, I understand that, but it takes away my fresh air from
the river, if you will.

MR. WEYANT: Mrs. Ignacio, again to state, he is not making the building any
bigger than it already is.

MRS. IGNACIO: I am not so sure that I believe whatever he says, having been told
one thing years ago and finding out that it is not true.
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MR. WEYANT: I can only tell you what is on the application. This Board is not
going to allow him being that he has applied to do that.

MR. JANNARONE: Let me ask you a question. There is a building/garage right
there, you know where it is.

MRS. IGNACIO: There is a garage, with stairs up the back.

MR. JANNARONE: If that were an apartment, would you object to it?

MRS. IGNACIO: It depends on who is there, really. On an occasion, my son-in-law
had the children out in the pool and observed a couple of gentlemen sitting on those

steps, drinking whatever.

MR. JANNARONE: You can’t control who is going to be there for the next 50 years.
If that were an apartment, and not a garage, would you object to it being there?

MRS. IGNACIO: How far off of the wall are those steps?
MR. JANNARONE: I don’t know.

MRS. IGNACIO: Maybe we should know that. I would object if they were less than
10 feet.

MR. JANNARONE: You know exactly what is there right now. If tomorrow that
were an apartment, would you object to that being an apartment and not a garage?

MRS. IGNACIO: If those stairs made it less than 10 feet from the wall, yes. I want to
know that.

MRS. JANNARONE: You are still not answering my question.
MRS. IGNACIO: My daughter says, yes, I object.

MR. HAGER showed Mrs. Ignacio a copy of the map and pointed out the separation
from her property line to the existing building.

MR. WEYANT: Mrs. Ignacio, are you satisfied at this point with your explanation
from Mr. Hager?

MRS. IGNACIO: I am not sure.
MR. HAGER: I can go downstairs and get my scale.

MR. WEYANT: Idon’t really want to have a debate about the stair situation tonight.
I don’t think that is necessary to do that.

MRS. IGNACIO: Is it possible to know a little bit more about it before I agree?

MR. WEYANT: About what?
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MRS. IGNACIO: This whole issue.

MR. WEYANT: The whole issue, the way I understand it, is that we have an existing
garage that they want to convert to an apartment. In order to do, that they need
approval from this Board to waive certain zoning requirements. That is all we are
talking about.

MR. DONNERY: Jim, a question for you: Are the stairs already there?

MR. TITOLO: The stairs have been an existing condition for at least 20 or 30 years
and I am very confident that they are much more than 10 feet from that back wall.

MR. DONNERY: The stairs are already there he is saying, and they are more than 10
feet away, they are not going to change.

MRS. IGNACIO: The stairs are there since it was made an “apartment/office” or
whatever. I was told it was an office. It was not, it was an apartment.

MR. DONNERY: What we are saying, is that the stairs are already there, they are
not going to move.

MRS. IGNACIO: I want to know if the stairs are 10 feet off the wall.

MR. DOHERTY: According to the scale off of this drawing, the back of that building
is 20 feet from that wall. This is a surveyor’s map. That building is not going to be
enlarged; it is not going to be made any bigger. The only thing they are going to do,
if it is allowed, is instead of it being an office, it is going to be an apartment. The
building won’t be enlarged by any way shape or form. I think maybe you are misled
on that, that you think it is going to get bigger.

MRS. IGNACIO: No, I am not being misled.

MRS. KAREN PELELLA, 24 Regina Road, Highland Falls, NY: One question: The
confusion about the footage and the square footage from the property was directly
information we got from the letter. It said that two things would be discussed. We
are here to find out what does that means. Do you still have the letter, Jen?

MR. WEYANT: We don’t need to see the letter. We know what the topic of
discussion is.

MRS. PELELLA: It said something about 10 feet to zero feet. What does that mean?

MR. TITOLO: I am sorry Mrs. Ignacio; I probably should have come down to
explain it to you privately. On the adjoining property, not your property line, but the
adjoining property, and I don’t know who’s that is. If you are facing the garage, it is
to the left, the property owner to the left. On the map he showed the area. In our
Code it requires a 10 foot setback. This has been an existing condition and it is pre-
existing the zoning requirements. I guess it was Mr. Manuli who had an agreement
with this adjoining property owner when he built this garage. For some reason,
there was a one foot offset here. I think that Mr. Manuli bought one foot of land
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from the adjoining property owner. It does not have anything to do with your side.
He showed the map to Mrs. Ignacio.

MR. WEYANT: Mr. Titolo, could this be done after the meeting?
MR. TITOLO: Yes.
MRS. IGNACIO: Do we have to agree on this tonight?

MR. WEYANT: You do not have to agree tonight. We are able to listen to what you
have to say tonight until the Public Hearing is closed. You can, as my Counsel is
informing me, give us anything in writing that you like for up to ten days. Tonight is
for whatever you want to say for the record. Does that help?

MRS. IGNACIO: Not enough.

MR. WEYANT: You can give us written comments, which this Board will take into
account. Mrs. Pelella, did we answer your question?

MRS. PELELLA: Yes, I think so. I heard the one foot thing.

MR. JANNARONE: On the side, not her side, but on the side the building is right up
against the property line. In the back of the garage which abuts her property there is
space. The building is not going to move, it is not going to change. They would like
to use it as an apartment instead of an office.

MR. WEYANT: That is what they need approval from us for because there is a
minimum of requirement for square footage for an apartment.

MRS. PELELLA: That was mentioned in the letter, too.
MR. WEYANT: Right, they don’t have it at the present time.

MRS. PELELLA: It is supposed to be 900 and he wants 600. I was curious as to
what that means.

MR. JANNARONE: It does not meet the requirements for an apartment, it is not big
enough.

MR. WEYANT: The Village has set standards for an apartment and it does not meet
that standard. That is why you have a Consolidated Zoning Board to grant a variance
or not grant it depending on how we feel.

MR. WEYANT: Is there anyone else in the audience that would like to speak on this?

MR. HAGER: I think it might clear things up a little bit for the residents if they
understand that in the building permit that was applied for there was no proposal by
the owner to increase the size of the building or to do anything to the exterior of the
building. The building is in the same location and is the same size. As discussed,
what originally was built as an office or storage area above the parking area/garage is
now intended to be used legally as an apartment. It appears it has been used as an
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apartment previously and now they would like to get the legal ability to do that. That
is what they are applying for in my mind. They have to jump over these hurdles to
get that. The square footage is slightly less than what is required by current Code.
There are lots of apartments in the Village that are much smaller than 900, but they
were built prior to the adoption of the Codes. They are allowed to exist. Newer
things and conversions are supposed to meet the Code. If they cannot, they must
apply for these variances. That is what the applicant is doing now. That is what the
Board is considering. I can’t issue the owner a building permit until these variances
are considered and approved.

MRS. HURST: Do you take into consideration the fact that it is being used now as an
apartment even though they don’t have it already in the books as an apartment?

MR. WEYANT: It is not a legal apartment.

MRS. HURST: Let’s call it an illegal apartment. Do you take that into account what
it is being used for now when you make your decision?

MR. WEYANT: Sure.
MRS. HURST: Thank you.

MR. TITOLO: Iwould like to submit eight letters from property owners adjoining
the lot. I would like to read a quick statement from Mr. Sapienza:

July 19, 2010, 11:57 A. M. - FAX
“Dear Sirs,

Please don’t think my absence today is in any way a reflection of my perception of
the importance to today’s proceedings. Or disrespect for your time and effort. It is
just a matter of my survival.

Acting work is very unusual. You only have one opportunity to get THE JOB. I had
to go to Los Angeles to audition for Criminal Minds at CBS today at 4 PM and could
not make it back on time. I'm very sorry. Auditions are not like regular job
interviews. They don’t change the times. They just move on to the next actor.

I love Ondaora Park and the residents and friends I have made there. I have no
complaints at all. Itreasure the friends I have made in Highland Falls also. Mayor
Donofrio presided over the marriage of my wife Michelle and me July of 2008.

Please, my mother and I need some help from our neighbors.

First I want it to be clear that I don’t make one penny off this house. Irun it for my
84 year old mother for free. As a matter of fact, since 2005 my mother owes me
$100,000.00. Meaning my mother’s expenses were one hundred thousand dollars
over her income from social security and the house and I have laid out the difference.

2009 was a terrible year. We had empty apartments since January and the oil is over
$37,000 just to heat it. I never once considered cutting down on the maintenance of
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the interior and exterior of the house. I feel an obligation to the neighborhood and to
JP Morgan’s memory. I take a personal stake in keeping that house at 100%
regardless of its income.

When my Dad got too sick to run the house in 2000, I came back from LA and found
it to be an eyesore and the neighbors were really mad. I took out a mortgage and
renovated it to its potential.

In 2004 there was a fire and we renovated it again costing $125,000 over what the
insurance payment was.

There has always been an apt over the garage. My father’s partner Louis Crua lived
there in the 70’s and early 80’s. It was small with a bathroom with a shower, fridge
and hotplate. After the fire in 2004 we added a beautiful full kitchen, five windows,
and skylight and remodeled it beautifully. There have been tenants in there since.

I apologize for not doing that properly. I take full responsibility. There was a lot of
confusion during the fire and the apt over the garage was the only place that was still
inhabitable. So we fixed it right away and used it as an office head quarters during
the year long fire renovation. I thought it was all ok. I asked people in power days
after the fire, and they said yes. I will do whatever I have to do to make it all right.

I also want to add one more thing. This house has kind of found a niche market in
Highland Falls. Because I keep it like a 4 star hotel we get all the instructors from
West Point. Always! All my tenants except one are West Point faculty. Major,
Captains, and One Colonel. We get all the teachers who teach for a year or two and
then go back to Iraq and Afghanistan. We serve a good purpose for the war effort
and for the Army. We need to keep that apartment above the garage available for
them.

Plus on a more personal note this past year and one half has been devastating. We
are broke! Three empty apartments since Jan 2010. Oil at $36,000 and Mortgage
and taxes are more than we took in. I fund the difference and I will never lower the
standard of maintenance.

Please let me keep the apartment over the garage.
Thank you.

Sincerely,
Al Sapienza”

MR. TITOLO: Iwould also like this Board and the people in attendance to
understand that after the fire Mr. Sapienza secured 10 Certificate of Occupancies.
Unfortunately, Mr. Sapienza assumed that it meant 10 apartments. But it actually
meant nine apartments and one common building. It was not until the Building
Department came to do a fire inspection that we found out that the apartment over
the garage had not received a Certificate of Occupancy after the fire.

MR. WEYANT: Mr. Titolo, I will ask that you make copies of all of these letters for 1
the Board Members and give them to Mr. Hager.
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MR. TITOLO: Yes.

MR. WEYANT: Is there anyone else that wants to speak on this application.
Hearing none, I would ask that the Public Hearing be closed.

At 7:43 P. M., a motion was made to close the Public Hearing.
Motion: Mr. Doherty Seconded: Mr. Donnery Approved

MR. WEYANT: Being that we have a lot of information to go through, I am not
ready to act on this tonight. Mr. Hager will give a copy of his letter to Mr. Titolo. We
will further consider the information given to us and will take it up at our August
meeting.

MS. TERHUNE: I can give you the case law and our interpretation, but ultimately, it
is your decision to interpret the Code as to what you feel it is saying. It is a little bit
up in the air. This Board has a fair amount of equitable discretion. If you decide that
for example that it is not a use variance but it is an area variance. He definitely
needs variances. It does not mean that you have to grant that or any variance. I
would be happy to give you more information and make it available before the next
meeting.

MR. JANNARONE: I am concerned that anybody that has a garage can say I can
make it an apartment.

MS. TERHUNE: Every decision that you make has to be distinguished from every
other decision based on facts. For example, you granted an area variance back in
2008 to Mr. Tonneson. What he was doing was he had two legal non-conforming
apartments. They were similar. He added a second floor and he increased the area
of the apartments. That, in this Board’s discretion, was an area variance. You did
grant it, you did not have to, but you granted it. The basis for that was he was
making it better and more conforming, even though it was still not 1200 square feet,
it was at least greater than 300 square feet. That was a different factual pattern. You
are not bound here by that determination because it is a different set of
circumstances. It does not set a precedent, as long as you can distinguish between
this decision and another decision.

MR. WEYANT: I think your input would be welcomed. August 16, 2010 is our next
meeting date.

MR. TITOLO: Thank you.

MR. WEYANT: We next have a Public Hearing for USAA, 529 Main Street, Highland
Falls. We have variances for parking and side yard setback from two property lines.

I note for the record that we have an Affidavit of Mailing to the property owners, and
an Affidavit of the Posting of the Sign and we have an Affidavit of Publication in the
News of the Highlands for tonight’s Public Hearing.
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MR. WEYANT: Mr. Johnson and Mr. Wojciekofsky, please hold up your right hand.
Do you solemnly swear that the information provided herein to be accurate and true
to the best of your ability?

MR. JOHNSON AND MR. WOJCIEKOFSKY: Yes.

MR. WEYANT: Please review for the Board and the audience what you are asking
for.

MR. JOHNSON: We are here to seek two variances, the first in parking. Currently,
the existing site has 11 parking spaces. The proposed plan provides 8 parking and
one loading, for a total of 9. Although we are increasing the square footage of the
building, this financial center is not a tradition bank in terms of tellers and there will
not be a drive through. With it not being a commercial retail bank, and also the
hardship that this area back here allows, it would be difficult for USAA to increase
the parking. We are seeking that we decrease the parking from 11 to 8.

The second is the setbacks on the north and south sides of the property. We
relocated the existing building and enhancing the street front which will be in line
with Main Street. But to the south and to the north we are pulling the building in.
Currently, it would be a zero setback or 12 feet. To make our building in square
footage work, we are trying to do a 4 foot setback to the south and a 3 foot setback to
the north. This would allow us to have small amounts of glazing on either side.

MR. WEYANT: Anyone in the audience that would like to speak.

MR. MICHAEL BOSCH, 39 Cedar Lane, Highland Falls. He looked over the plans.
I guess my only concern would be is that there are 11 parking spaces now and they
are increasing the size of the office space. What is the current office space now and
what are you increasing it to?

MR. JOHNSON: Using rough numbers, currently it is less than 3,000 square feet.
The new proposed building is 6,700 square feet.

MR. BOSCH: More than double. I own the property next door. I have the only
parking lot on that end of the Town, which is already currently being abused by other
stores that are right along side of me. My concern is that the overflow would end up
in my parking lot. I am sure it will be an improvement to the current building that is
there.

MR. WEYANT: Show us where your parking lot is.
MR. BOSCH: Showed on the map the location of his parking lot.

MR. JANNARONE: Do you have any feel for how many people who are abusing your
lot are USAA customers?

MR. BOSCH. Without standing out there, no. Have I seen it over the years, yes.

MR. WEYANT: Is this the parking lot that is directly next to the Gray Line and
hairdresser? Goes up the hill toward your auto repair?
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MR. BOSCH: Yes.

MR. WEYANT: You really don’t have any idea how many USAA customers use it.
MR. BOSCH: No I really don’t.

MR. JANNARONE: Have you ever seen the USAA lot full?

MR. BOSCH: Yes, I have.

MR. DOHERTY: How many present employees are there now in that structure?
MR. JOHNSON: I was there today. There are 3. There are no plans to increase
staff. They may add one additional person. Four full time employees will be on staff.
In this financial center they are trying to cater to the walk up client being what is to
the north and trying to cater to the cadets with that walk up experience and
convenience to them. Their business model is more of a high tech kind of branch.
There is no money transacted. You go there and receive financial education, with

telecommunication. I feel confident that the personnel will be four.

MR. MONTELLESE: What is the accessibility to the parking? Is it still going to be
raised, as it is now?

MR. JOHNSON: There is a 14x24 cut out drive aisle that will allow you to come
through.

MR. MONTELLESE: Will there be an ATM machine?

MR. JOHNSON: There will be one ATM inside the lobby.

MR. MONTELLESE: Not a drive up?

MR. JOHNSON: Definitely not a drive up.

MR. DOHERTY: What is the height on that, the drive through?

MR. JOHNSON: 14 feet by 24 feet.

MR. MONTELLESE: There was mention of a loading dock?

MR. JOHNSON: I would not call it a loading dock. It is a loading bay area.

MR. WOJCIEKOFSKY: It is required by your Code. There is not a lot of loading
going on. Itis required by the Planning Board.

MR. WEYANT: This still has to go before the Planning Board.

MR. WOJCIEKOFSKY: We submitted for this week’s meeting. We will be meeting
with them for the first time Thursday.
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MR. DONNERY: The land behind it, there is no way to get additional parking back
there? Off the top of my head, I don’t know what is there.

MR. JOHNSON: There is an elevation there; it goes up to the back of the property.

MR. WOJCIEKOFSKY: I think some of USAA’s goal was to maintain this screened
area because this is a residential property in the back and to maintain that existing
buffer, because basically we are maintaining the walls here and the green space in
the back which provides a buffer to that residential lot. Businesses want to provide
enough parking so that their customers are not inconvenience at all. Ithink USAA
really has put some thought into the proper number of parking spaces here and
based on their operation in the current facility. They see what the parking demand is
and feel comfortable with the number of spaces.

MR. WEYANT: Is there anyone else in the audience that wishes to speak towards
this? Hearing none, I will ask that the Public Hearing be closed.

At 7:59 P. M., a motion was made to close the Public Hearing.
Motion: Mr. Doherty Seconded: Mr. Jannarone Approved

MR. WEYANT: Gentlemen, what is your pleasure, do you want to act on this
tonight or would you rather hold this to our next meeting?

MR. JANNARONE: They are going before the Planning Board?

MR. WEYANT: They are going before the Planning Board Thursday. They would
probably like to get an answer from us tonight before the Planning Board. I am sure
the Planning Board would love to have that done.

MR. JOHNSON: We would love that too.
MR. WEYANT: I know you would.

MR. MONTELLESE: I am always hesitant to establish anything in a commercial
area like that and cut back on parking. Although, I am sure what the gentlemen are
telling us is feasible that they will only maintain employ four employees. You are
talking about eight spots. If you have two or three more people, you have the
parking lot full already.

MR. WEYANT: I don’t see their aspect of the business being like a normal banking
operation where you would have a lot of people driving there.

MR. MONTELLESE: Don’t forget that is also the dead end of town or the beginning
of town however you want to look at it. There is no way, you turn around and you
are at the end of the street. If you can’t park in their lot, then it is conceivable that
you will drive up a half a block to park in Bosch’s property. That is something we
have to consider also. This is a strategically put spot that there is no choice when you
get down there.
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MR. JANNARONE: Or will their customers, if they are driving, coming from West
Point drive to the Thayer Lot so they won’t have to go back through security after
they do their business.

MR. MONTELLESE: That is a good point, also. You could park in Thayer or Buffalo
Soldier and walk across. You would get in and out of security easier.

MR. JANNARONE: You don’t have to do security if you do that.

MR. WEYANT: Ralph, across from the Gray Line in the median, isn’t there parking
spots there, too?

MR. DOHERTY: There may be four spots there.
MR. MONTELLESE: It is very limited.

MR. BOSCH: For the record, they are not actually parking spots on the road. It was
against the law for years. All of a sudden, it became okay to park there.

MR. DONNERY: How long does it take for a transaction when a customer comes in?
MR. JOHNSON: I think it varies. I don’t know. I can get you that information.

MR. WEYANT: I don’t think these gentlemen know the operation. They cannot
answer that question.

MR. DONNERY: I would like to know that.

MR. WEYANT: Last time we had a gentleman here who could answer that question.
I don’t remember his name.

MR. JOHNSON: Greg Dyson.

MR. MONTELLESE: On the north side of your building is there any ability for
parking, or is it right up against the Government property fence?

MR. JOHNSON: The property fence is right on the line and we pulled back three
feet.

MR. WEYANT: So besides parking, we are looking at another variance.
MR. DOHERTY: Side yard on both the north and south sides.

MR. DONNERY: Did they get approval from the State and Federal Government,
also?

MR. DOHERTY: We don’t seek approval they just did not have any objections.

MR. WEYANT: No, Main Street, we have not applied to the County, if that is what
you are thinking of.
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MR. JANNARONE: He is talking about the Federal Government on the north side.

MS. TERHUNE: It is our zoning that applies.

MR. MONTELLESE: So they can go right up against the Government property and
not have to ask for permission?

MS. TERHUNE: No, it is our zoning that applies, not theirs.
MR. JOHNSON: We did send them the letters.

MR. WEYANT: They were noticed for tonight’s meeting.
MR. DONNERY: We never got a response back from them?

MR. WEYANT: They are not here. What is your pleasure, do you feel you need more
time for this, or do you want to do something now?

MR. MONTELLESE: I would like to look it over a little bit more and come to a
conclusion.

MR. DONNERY: I would like an answer to the question of how long it takes for a
transaction, as it refers to parking. Will it be 40 minutes, or 30 minutes or 10
minutes?

MR. WEYANT: We are not going to act on this tonight. I would ask that you return
on August 16, 2010 with Mr. Dyson so he can answer specific questions about the
operation that Mr. Donnery or other Board members might have. We will take it up
again then.

MR. JOHNSON: Thank you.

MR. WEYANT: We have before us the Grace Baptist Church, 54 Old State Road,
Fort Montgomery, NY. They are here tonight to present an application for a
variance from the front yard setback for the construction of a porch roof over the
stairs. You should all have a copy of the plans and survey. I will have Rev. Snavely,
who is representing the church, to speak and outline what they are doing.

REV. SNAVELY: We are redoing the facade on the building and adding a
handicapped bathroom on the interior. We are also enclosing the current porch. We
are putting glass doors on two openings. We would like to extend the porch over the
steps.

MR. DOHERTY: On the side of the building, not that ramp.

REV. SNAVELY: The side, just where the steps are coming out into the parking lot
area. I know what the setbacks are there and we are looking for a variance of
approximately 35 feet. This afternoon I stepped it off with the white line of the road
to the steps where that work would be done. That is approximately 40 feet from the
road itself. I know that is not the property line but I believe it will allow clearance
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from the road as traffic comes in. On the second page, I have highlighted in red
basically where we would like to put the porch.

MR. DONNERY: We are just covering the stairs not the handicapped access.
REV. SNAVELY: That is correct.

MR. WEYANT: Would the owner of the property be the Trustees of the Church?
REV. SNAVELY: The Board of Trustees.

MS. TERHUNE: Is there a president?

REV. SNAVELY: No there is not. We don’t have a president or chairman. I chair all
those meetings. We don’t have a chairman of the trustees.

MS. TERHUNE: Who has an official title within the Board of Trustees?
REV. SNAVELY: The Secretary.

MR. WEYANT: You want a letter from the Secretary authorizing Rev. Snavely to
speak?

MS. TERHUNE: Yes, that would be fine.
MR. WEYANT: Will you do that and bring it to the Building Inspector’s office.

MS. TERHUNE: He can give it to the Building Inspector so that we have it in our
records showing that you are authorized to apply for this variance.

MR. WEYANT: We will set a Public hearing for August 16, 2010. Rev. Snavely you
have some things to do that you can go over with Mr. Hager. We will advertise.

MR. DONNERY: Do we need to notify County?
MR. DOHERTY: Is that Route 218?

REV. SNAVELY: That is a State Road.

MS. TERHUNE: I will take care of that.

MR. HAGER: I have a question about the notification. Are you in the proximity of
the trailer park?

REV. SNAVELY: The one trailer park is right behind us.

MR. HAGER: This came up once before. Do you notify the owner of the park
grounds or is notification required for the owners of the trailer units?

MR. DOHERTY: The last time we came up against that it was the owner of the park.



ZBA —7-19-10 - Page 19 of Witt and Fran19
MS. TERHUNE: It is the owner of the park because the others are leasing.

MR. DOHERTY: They don’t actually own the property.

MR. WEYANT: You can find out the owner through Mr. Hager.

MR. HAGER: The trailer owners is the only information we don’t have in the office.
MR. WEYANT: Any other questions?

REV. SNAVELY: Thank you.

MR. JANNARONE: May I make a request. David is going to be gone in August and
he has asked me to run the meeting. If you can’t make it at the last minute, give me a

call.

MR. WEYANT: Jack in his official position as Deputy Chairman will run the August
meeting.

MR. JANNARONE: Provided his number.

MR. WEYANT: I will get together with Jack prior to the meeting and I will make up
an agenda, as well as the legal notices that you will need.

MR. WEYANT: I have nothing else, may I have a motion to adjourn.
At 8:15 P. M., a motion was made to adjourn the meeting.

Motion: Mr. Doherty Seconded: Mr. Donnery Approved

Respectfully submitted,
Fran DeWitt
Recording Secretary

The next Consolidated Zoning Board of Appeals meeting is
Monday, August 16, 2010



